## BIDDULPH TOWN COUNCIL MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 15 MAY 2018

#### **PRESENT**

The Mayor - Councillor McGuinness

**Councillor Court** 

Councillor Harper

Councillor Lawson

Councillor Nicosia

Councillor Redfern

**Councillor Rogers** 

Councillor Salt

Councillor Whilding

## 1.18 ELECTION OF A CHAIR AND DEPUTY

The Mayor called for nominations for Chair of the Planning Committee. Councillor Rogers proposed Councillor Hawley for the Chair; seconded by Councillor Harper and agreed.

The Mayor called for nominations for Deputy Chair of the Planning Committee. Councillor Rogers proposed Councillor Nicosia for the role, stating that Independent Councillors believed her to be well-prepared and thorough. This was seconded by Councillor Court and agreed.

In the absence of Councillor Hawley, Councillor Nicosia took the Chair.

## 2 APOLOGIES

Councillor Hawley

**Councillor Davies** 

Councillor Swift

### 3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

- a. Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and Dispensations: None
- b. Other Interests:

SMD/2018/0266 Councillor Court knows the applicant.

SMD/2018/0242 Councillor Nicosia knows the applicant.

PERMISSION FOR DEVELOPMENT SM 18/01 Councillor Salt works as part of this partnership.

SMD/2018/0242 Councillor Rogers had been asked to speak in relation to this application.

## 4 MINUTES

The Minutes of the meeting held on 10 April 2018 were signed as an accurate record.

### 5 BIDDULPH NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN

The Minutes of the Neighbourhood Plan Working Group meeting held on 11 April 2018 were received.

### **6 FOOTPATHS SUB-COMMITTEE**

The Minutes of the Footpaths Sub-Committee meeting held on 16 April 2018 were received.

## 7 PLANNING APPLICATIONS

Councillor Nicosia summarised each application prior to discussion about it.

SMD/2018/0157	Former bank	Change of use from bank to restaurant with
	63 High Street	take-out facilities.

Councillor Nicosia thought there were enough takeaways in Biddulph and was concerned about this application.

Councillor Court noted that there were 54 covers, meaning it was predominantly a restaurant, and not a standard takeaway. Councillors Court felt that Biddulph needs a good quality restaurant, but wondered whether parking would be an issue.

Councillor Harper wondered whether there had been any inspections or considerations from the Fire Service.

Councillor Rogers was disappointed this was a food outlet, but didn't want to see empty shops. A Councillor had once said to him that 'takeaways and hairdressers had saved this town'. He could see now that this was because they had filled empty units.

Councillor McGuinness was disappointed; this was a beautiful building. However, there were no grounds to object.

Councillor Redfern echoed what other Councillors had said, but the development of a restaurant was not a material planning consideration. He would prefer to see this as a higher-class restaurant.

Councillor Whilding noted that the development of a Natwest building in Barmouth had been very tasteful. A high quality restaurant was needed.

Councillor Court queried whether there was information about the opening hours; Councillor Nicosia noted that this was just an application for change of use.

There was a vote: one against, all others in favour of approval.

SMD/2018/0197	97-99 High Street	Existing ground floor unit to be split back into two retail units, including refurbishment of the ancillary accommodation. Change of use of the first floor currently used as office, storage and ancillary accommodation to one, one bed flat and one two bed
		apartment with separate access.

Councillor Rogers felt that the High Street needed retail units.

Councillor McGuinness felt that this was currently an eyesore, and a revamp was long overdue.

Councillor Court was pleased that there would be additional accommodation in the town centre.

## All in favour of approval.

SMD/2018/0236	Meadow View	Single storey rear extension to existing
		lounge. Alteration to Well Lane existing roof to raise ridge height. New vehicular access
		point from Well Lane.

Councillor Rogers noted that this applicant had submitted variations on this application many times. The issue was around the roof height; SMDC had previously stated that this should not be raised.

Councillor Nicosia noted that the application noted that all the issues had been addressed.

# It was agreed to approve this application, subject to previous concerns being addressed.

SMD/2018/0237	69 Cloud House	Construction of single detached garage and	
		store Rudyard Road.	

Councillor Court queried whether there had been any Highways considerations.

Councillor Harper noted that this appeared to be a sympathetic construction.

## Approved, subject to no concerns from Highways.

SMD/2018/0239	198 Park Lane	Rear and side extensions with alterations to
		roof.

## Approved, subject to no valid neighbour concerns.

SMD/2018/0242	6 Minerva Close	Rear single storey extension and internal
		alterations.

Councillor Nicosia noted that there was neighbour involvement in relation to this application, but they did not appear to be material planning considerations.

Councillor Rogers had been asked to speak on this application and noted that it was 'not neighbourly'. There was a disabled person living next door and this extension would be overbearing; this was over-development.

Councillor Nicosia noted that there was no space down the side of the house, even for a wheelie bin, and queried whether Councillors wished to refuse this application on the basis that it was overbearing and over-development of the site. All agreed.

#### Refused

SMD/2018/0261	2 Dorset Drive	Two storey side extension. Front porch
		extension.

### No adverse comments

SMD/2018/0262	Bentley House Proposed conversion of barn to form	
	Newtown Road	ancillary living accommodation

Councillor Lawson queried whether the size of the property would remain the same; Councillor Nicosia noted that it was the conversion of an existing building into accommodation.

Councillor Salt felt that the timber frames should be retained.

Councillor Redfern wondered whether there was a further process to go through before conversion; previously this would have had to be advertised as commercial premises.

Councillor Harper agreed with Councillor Salt in relation to retaining the timber window frames.

## It was agreed that this should be approved with a recommendation to retain the timber framed windows.

SMD/2018/0266	37 Portland Drive	Two storey extension (approved under SMD/2018/0031) plus single storey rear
		extension.

Councillor Salt felt that, as this Council had used the services of the applicant, it was inappropriate to comment on this application.

There was a vote and it was agreed that the Town Council would not comment on this application.

# 8 STAFFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL – PERMISSION FOR DEVELOPMENT SM 18/01

Biddulph High School Conway Road New single storey extension to provide a Resource Area and associated circulation and classroom storage

This decision was received by the Committee.

## 9 DECISIONS AND NOTICES RECEIVED FROM THE DISTRICT COUNCIL

		Town Council recommendation	SMDC Decision
HNT/2018/0003	34 Fold Lane	No Adverse Comments	Prior Approval granted
SMD/2018/0016	273 Congleton Road	No Adverse Comments	Approved
SMD/2018/0066	Moorside	No Adverse Comments	Approved
SMD/2018/0138	Hillside, Hurst Road	No Adverse Comments	Approved
SMD/2018/0160	12 Farnham Drive	No Adverse Comments	Approved

Decisions and notices were received by the Committee.	
The meeting closed at 9.22pm	
Signature	Date